ANNUAL REPORT | 2003

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003

1. GENERAL

The Compuny is un exempted compuny incorporuted in Bermudu with limited liubility. Its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchunyge of Honyg Kony Limited (the "Hony Kony Stock Exchanyge”).

The Compuny is un investment holding compuny. The principul activities of the Compuany’s principul
subsidiaries und the Group’s principul ussociutes und jointly controlled entities aure set out in hote 49.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE

In the current yeur, the Group hus udopted, for the first time, the followiny new und revised Stutements of
Stundurd Accounting Pructice ("SSAPs”) issued by the Hony Kony Society of Accountunts:

SSAP 1 (Revised) Presentation of finunciul stutements
SSAP 11 (Revised) Foreigh currency translution

SSAP 15 (Revised) Cush flow statements

SSAP 34 Employee benefits

The udoption of these SSAPs hus resulted in u chunge in the formut of presentution of the cush flow statement
and the inclusion of the stutement of changes in eqyuity. The udoption of the new und revised uccounting
policies hus had no muterial effect on the results for the current or prior uccounting yeurs. Accordingly, ho
prior period udjustment hus been reyuired.

Presentation of financial statements

In uccordunce with SSAP 1 (Revised), the consoliduted stutement of recoynised guins und losses is repluced
by the consoliduted stutement of chunyes in equity.

Foreign currency translation

The revisions to SSAP 11 huve eliminuted the choice of frunsluting the income stutements of overseus
operutions at the closing rute for the period, the policy previously followed by the Group. They dre how
required to be trunsluted ut aun uveruye rate. SSAP 11 (Revised) is reyuired to be upplied retrospectively. The
Group hus udopted the trunsitionul provision of this SSAP that where the culculation of u prior period
adjustment is impracticul, these chunyes in policy ure upplied only to current und future financial stutements
and the effect on the results for the current year is not significunt,

Cash flow statements

Under SSAP 15 (Revised), cush flows ure clussified under three heudinys — operuting, investing und finuncing,
rather than the previous five heudings. Interest puid is clussified us finuncinyg cush flows. Dividends puid und
received ure clussified us finuncing aund operating cush flows, respectively. Compurative umounts have
been reclussified in order to uchieve u consistent presentution.

Employee benefits

SSAP 34 hus infroduced meusurement rules und disclosure requirements for employee benefits, includiny
retirement benefit pluns. Becuuse the Group purticiputes only in defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes, the udoption of SSAP 34 hus hot hud uny impuct on the finunciul stutements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The finunciul stutements have been prepured unhder the historicul cost convention, us modified for the
revuluution of certuin properties und investments in securities, und in accordunce with accounting principles
geherully uccepted in Hony Kony. The principul uccounting policies udopted ure us follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consoliduted finunciul statements incorporute the financial statements of the Compuny and its subsidiuries
mude up to 31st Murch euch yeuar,

The results of subsidiuries, ussociutes und jointly controlled entities ucquired or disposed of duriny the yeur
are included in the cohsoliduted income stutement from the effective dutes of acqyuisition or up to the
effective dutes of disposul, us uppropriate.

Any significunt infercompuny transuctions und balances within the Group dre eliminuted on consolidution.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plunt und equipment and freehold lund, are stuted at cost or vuluution less depreciation und
amortisution und uccumuluted impuirment losses.

Lund und buildings dare stated in the bulunce sheet at their revalued umount, beiny the fair value ut the
dute of revuludtion less uny subseguent uccumuluted depreciution und uamortisation und uny subseyuent
impuirment losses. Revuluutions aure performed with sufficient regulurity such that the currying amount does
not differ mauterially from that which would be determined using fuir values ut the bulunce sheet dute.

Any revuludtion increuse urising on revuluution of lund und buildinys is credited to the revuluution reserve,
except to the extent that it reverses u revuluation decreuse of the sume usset previously recoynised us un
expense, in which cuse the increuse is credited to the income statement to the extent of the decreuse
previously charged. A decreuse in het currying umount arising on revuluation of un usset is deult with us an
expense to the extent thut it exceeds the bulunce, if uny, oh the usset revuluution reserve reluting to u
previous revuluution of thut usset, On the subseqyuent sule or retirement of u revulued usset, the attributauble
revuluution increuse is frunsferred to uccumuluted profits.

No amortisution is provided in respect of freehold lund.

Amortisation is provided to write off the vuludtion of leusehold lund over the remuininyg period of the relevant
leuse using the struight-line method. The vuluution of buildings is depreciuted, using the straight-line method,
over their estimuted useful lives of fifty years or the remuining period of the relevant leuse, whichever is

shorter.

Depreciution is provided so us to write off the cost of other property, plant und eyuipment over their
estimuted useful lives, usiny the straight-line method, ut rutes runging from 10% to 33'/3% per unnum.

The yguin or loss urising on the disposul or retirement of un usset is determined us the difference between the
sule proceeds und the currying umount of the usset und is recoynised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties ure completed properties which are held for their investment potentiul, with rental
income beiny neygotiauted at arm’s length.

Investment properties are stated ut open market vulue at bulunce sheet date. Any revaluution increuse or
decreuse urising on the revuluution of investment properties is credited or chargyed to the investment properties
revaluution reserve unless the balance on this reserve is insufficient to cover u revaluution decreuse, in
which cuse the excess of revuluution decreuse over the bulunce on the investment properties revuluation
reserve is churged to the income statement. Where u decreuse hus previously been churyed to the income
stutement and u revuludtion increuse subseyuently urises, this increuse is credited to the income statement
to the extent of the decreuse previously charged.

On disposul of un investment property, the bulunce on the investment properties revuluution reserve
attributuble to that property is trunsferred to the income stutement.

No depreciution is provided on investment properties except where the unexpired term of the relevunt leuse
is 20 yeurs or less.

Goodwill

Goodwill urising onh consolidation represents the excess of the cost of ucqyuisition over the Group’s interest in
the fdir vulue of the identifiuble ussets and liubilities of u subsidiury, aun ussociute or u jointly controlled entity
ut the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on ucyuisition on or ufter 1st April, 2001 is cupitulised und umortised on u struight-line busis
over its useful economic life. Goodwill arising on the ucquisition of un ussociute or u jointly controlled entity
is included within the currying umount of the ussociute und the jointly controlled entity. Goodwill arising on
the ucqyuisition of subsidiuries is presented sepurutely in the bulunce sheet.

Goodwill arising on ucqyuisitions prior to Tst April, 2001 continues to be held in reserves, und will be churyed
to the income stutement ut the time of disposul of the relevant subsidiury, associute or jointly controlled
entity, or ut such time us the yoodwill is determined to be impuired.

On disposul of u subsidiury, un ussociute or u jointly controlled entity, the attributauble umount of unamortised
goodwill/goodwill previously eliminuted aguinst reserves is included in the determination of the profit or loss
onh disposul.

Negative goodwill

Negyutive goodwill represents the excess of the Group’s interest in the fuir value of the identifiable ussets und
liubilities of u subsidiury, an ussociute or u jointly controlled entity uat the dute of ucquisition over the cost of
ucyuisition.

Neyutive yoodwill will be releused to income stutement bused on unh unulysis of the circumstunces from
which the balance resulted. To the extent thut the hegutive goodwill is uttributuble to losses or expenses
unticiputed ut the dute of ucyuisition, it is releused to income in the period in which those losses or expenses
arise. The remuining heyuative goodwill is recoygnised us income on a straight-line busis over the remuining
uveruyge useful life of the identifiuble ucyuired depreciuble ussets. To the extent that such neyutive goodwill
exceeds the uyyreyute fuir vulue of the aucyuired identifiuble nhon-monetury ussets, it is recoynised us
income immediutely.

Neyutive goodwill arising on the ucqyuisition of un ussociute or u jointly controlled entity is deducted from

the currying amount of that ussociute und jointly controlled entity. Neyutive goodwill arising on the ucqyuisition
of subsidiuries is presented sepurutely in the balance sheet us u deduction from ussets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries ure included in the Compuny’s bulunce sheet ut cost less uny identified impuirment
loss.

Interests in associates
The results und ussets und liubilities of ussociutes ure incorporuted in these finunciul stutements using the

equity method of uccounting . The currying umount of such interests is reduced to recoynise uny identified
impuirment in the vulue of individuul investments.

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Joint venture urrungements which involve the estublishment of u sepurate entity in which euch venturer hus
an interest ure referred to us jointly controlled entities.

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities ure included in the consoliduted bulunce sheet ut the
Group’s shure of the het ussets of the relevant jointly controlled entities, less uny identified impuirment loss.
The Group’s shure of the post-ucqyuisition results of jointly controlled entities is included in the consoliduted
income stutement.

Impairment

At euch bulunce sheet dute, the Group reviews the carrying uamounts of its ussets to determine whether
there is uny indicution that those ussets huve suffered an impuirment loss. If the recoverable umount of un
asset is estimated to be less thun its currying umount, the carrying amount of the usset is reduced to its
recoveruble umount. An impuirment loss is recoghised us un expense immediutely.

Where un impuirment loss subsequently reverses, the currying umount of the usset is increused to the revised
estimute of its recoveruble umount, but so thut the increused currying umount does hot exceed the curryiny
amount that would huve been determined had no impuirment loss been recoynised for the usset in prior
yeurs. A reversul of un impuirment loss is recoghised us income immediutely.

Investments in securities

Investments in securities ure recoynhised on u trade dute busis und are initiully meusured ut cost.

Investment securities, which are securities held for un identified long-term strateyic purpose, ure meusured
at subseyuent reporting dutes ut cost, us reduced by uny impuirment loss thut is other thun temporary.

Other investments ure meusured ut fuir value, with unreulised yuins and losses included in net profit or loss
for the yeur.

Inventories

Inventories represent finished goods which ure stuted ut the lower of cost und net redlisuble vulue. Cost is
culculated on first-in, first-out method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Construction contracts

When the outcome of u construction contruct cun be estimuted reliubly, contract costs ure recoynised us
expenses by reference to the stuge of completion of the contract uctivity ut the bulunce sheet dute on the
sume busis us contract revenue. When the outcome of a construction contruct cannot be estimated reliubly,
contruct costs ure recoyhised us expenses in the period in which they dre incurred. Provision is mude for
foreseeuble losses us soon us they ure unticiputed by munugement.

Where contract costs incurred to dute plus recoygnised profit less recoynised loss exceed proyress billinys,
the excess is shown as umount due from a customer for contrauct work. Where proyress billings exceed
contruct costs incurred to dute plus recoghised profit less recoynised loss, the excess is shown us umount
due to u customer for contract work.

Convertible notes

Convertible hotes ure sepurutely disclosed und regurded us debts unless conversion uctudlly occurs. The
finunce costs recoynised in the income statement in respect of the convertible hotes ure culculuted so us to
produce u constunt periodic rate of churge on the remuining bulunces of the convertible hotes for euch
accounting period.

The costs incurred in connection with the issue of convertible hotes dre deferred und umortised on d straight-
line busis over the term of the convertible notes, that is from the dates of issue of the notes to their finul
redemption dutes. If uny of the notes ure purchused und cuncelled, redeemed or converted prior to the
finul redemption dute, un uppropriute portion of uny remuining unumortised cost will be charged immediutely
to the income stutement.

Revenue recognition

Revenhue from u fixed price construction contract is recoynised on the percentagye of completion method,
meusured by reference to the vulue of work certified during the yeuar.

Sules of yoods ure recoyhised when yoods ure delivered und title hus pussed.
Service revenue is recoynised when services ure rendered.
Sules of securities ure recoyhised when the sule ugreement becomes unhconditionul.

Dividend income from investments is recoyghised when the Group’s or the Compuny’s right to receive puyment
has been established.

Interest income is uccrued on u time busis, by reference to the principal outstanding und at the interest rate
applicuble.

Rental income under operuting leuses is recoyhised on u straight-line busis over the terms of the relevunt
leuses.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowiny costs directly uttributuble to the ucquisition, construction or production of yuulifying ussets i.e.
assets that necessurily tuke u substauntial period of time to yget reudy for their infended use or sule, ure
cupitdlised us purt of the cost of those ussets. Capitalisution of such borrowing costs ceuses when the ussets
are substuntidlly reudy for their infended use or sule. Investment income eurned on the temporury investment
of specific borrowinys pendinyg their expenditure on quulifying ussets is deducted from the borrowiny costs
cupitulised.

All other borrowing costs ure recoynised us un expense in the period in which they dare incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies
Trunsuctions in currencies other thun Hony Kony dollurs ure trunsluted ut the rates ruling on the dutes of the
transuctions. Monetury assets und liubilities denominuted in currencies other thun Hony Kony dollars are re-

transluted at the rates ruling on the bulance sheet dute. Guins and losses urising on exchunge are deult with
in the income stutement,

On consolidution, the ussets und liubilities of the Group’s operutions outside Hohy Konhy ure transluted ut
exchunye rutes prevuiling on the bulunce sheet dute. Income und expehse items ure frunslated ut the
averuyge exchunye rutes for the period. Exchunge differences urising, if uny, are clussified us equity und
transferred to the Group’s translution reserve. Such translation differences dre recoyhised us income or
expenses in the period in which the operation is disposed of.

Taxation

The churge for tuxation is bused on the results for the yeur as udjusted for items that are hon-ussessuble or
disullowed. Timiny differences urise from the recogynition for tux purposes of certuin items of income und
expense in u different uccounting period from thut in which they dre recoynised in the financiul statements.
The tux effect of timiny differences, computed using the liubility method, is recoynised us deferred tuxution
in the finunciul stutements to the extent that it is probuble that a liubility or un usset will crystullise in the
foreseeuble future.

Retirement benefit scheme

The retirement benefit scheme contributions reluting to the defined contribution scheme churged to the
income stutement represents contributions puyuble to the scheme by the Group ut rates specified in the
rules of the scheme.

Operating leases
Rentuls puyuble under operuting leuses ure churgyed to the income stutement on u struight-line busis over
the terms of the relevunt leuses.

4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Turnover represents the het umounts received und receivuble from outside customers for the yeur und is
anulysed us follows:

2003 2002

HK$°000 HKS 000

Building construction 407,653 -
Civil engineering 123,048 -
Speciulist works 189,672 -
Construction materials 6,192 -
Property leusing 13,735 1,721
Investment and finunce 22,346 31,112
Others 6,051 7,314
768,697 40,147
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003

4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

During the yeur, the Group increused its equity interest in Paul VY. - ITC Construction Holdings Limited (“Paul V.
- ITC”) from 42.59% to 64.46%. Accordingly, Paul Y. - ITC becume u subsidiary of the Compuny in December
2002 und since then the segment information of Paul Y. - ITC wus included.

Business segments
For munagement purposes, the Group’s operutions dure currently orgunised intfo seven operating divisions
numely building construction, civil engineering, specialist works, construction muteridals, engineering und

infrastructure services, property leusing, und investment und finunce. These divisions ure the busis on which
the Group reports its primary segment information.

Business seyment informution for the yeur ended 31st Murch, 2003 is presented below:

Engineering
and Investment
Building Civil  Specialist Construction infrastructure Property and
construction engineering works  materials services leasing finance Others  Eliminations ~ Corporate Consolidated

HKS'000  HK§'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

TURNOVER
Extenal sules 407,653 123,048 189,672 6,192 - 13,735 22,346 6,051 - - 768,697
Inter-segment sules 543 - 39,807 23,136 - 4,428 829 29 (68,772) - -
Totul 408,196 123,048 229479 29,328 - 18,163 2,175 6,080 (68,772) - 768,697
RESULT
Segment esult 19,956 (40,519) 14,673 (7,244) - 5988 69,111 604 - - 62,469
Amortisution of negutive

goodwil 18,895
Unallocuted corporute

expenses (11,632)
Profit from operations 69,732
Finunce costs (36,680)
Investment expenses

- net (22,789)
Share of results of

ussociutes 2,004 9) - 114 (530) - - - - (346,013)  (344,434)
Share of results of jointly

contolled entities - 1,895 - - - - - - - - 1,895
Loss before tuxation (332.276)
Taution (24,835)
Loss before minority

interests (357,111)
Minority interests 1,703
Loss for the yeur (3565,408)

Inter-segyment sules ure churged ut market price or, where ho market price wus uvdiluble, at terms determined
and uyreed by both puarties.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003

4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

Business segments (contihued)

Engineering
and Investment
Building Civil  Specialist Construction infrastructure Property and
construction  engineering works  materials services leasing finance Others  Corporate Consolidated

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK§'000  HK$'000 HK§$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

BALANCE SHEET
ASSETS
Seyment ussets 1,063,076 368,008 193,942 96,312 - 622,262 1,256,831 773 315939 3,907,143
Interests in ussociutes 43,231 293 - 3,093 649,099 - - - 657,116 1,362,832
Interests in jointly controlled

entities - 8,743 - - - - - - - 8,743
Negutive goodwil - - - - - - - - (434,580)  (434,580)
Totul ussets 1,096,307 377,044 193,942 99,405 649,099 622,262 1,256,831 773 5384756 4,834,138
LIABILITIES
Seyment liabilities 871,883 298,347 95,744 47,353 - 22,189 1486 660 46,428 1,384,690
Convertible notes, bunk

borowings und other louns - - - - - - - - 1,340,644 1,340,644
Total liubilities 871,883 298,347 95,744 47,353 - 22,789 1486 660 1387072 2,725,334

OTHER INFORMATION

Cupitul udditions 769 10 182 8,667 - 88 80 - 2,167 12,023
Depreciation und

umortisution of property,

plunt und eyuipment 4,09 1,605 5532 1,733 - 3.044 340 6 2509 18,925

Amortisution of defered
expenditure on issuunce

of convertible notes - - - - - - - - 2,385 2,385
Amortisution of negutive
goodwil - - - - - - - - 18,895 18,895
e ITC Corporation Limited -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003
4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

Business segments (contihued)

Business segment information for the year ended 31st March, 2002 is presented below:

Investment
Property and
leasing finance Others  Eliminations Corporate  Consolidated
HK$’°000 HK$’°000 HK$’°000 HK$’°000 HK$’°000 HK$’°000

TURNOVER
Extemal sules 1,721 31,112 7.314 - - 40,147
Inter-segment sules 294 986 - (1,280) - -
Total 2,015 32,098 7.314 (1,280) - 40,147
RESULT
Seyment result 103 13,721 393 - - 14,217
Unullocuted corporute expenses (11,1587)
Profit from operations 3,060
Finunce costs (49,446)
Investment income - het 573
Guin on disposul und

dilution of inferests in

subsidiaries und ussociutes - - - - 2,128 2,128
Impuiment loss in respect

of goodwill - - - - (195,466) (195,466
Share of results of ussociutes - - - - (33,3006) (33,306
Loss before tuxution (272,457)
Taxation (16.853)
Loss before minority interests (289,310
Minority interests -
Loss for the yeur (289,310

Inter-seyment sules ure chaurged ut market price or, where ho market price wus uvdiluble, at terms determined
and uyreed by both puarties.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003

4.

Business segments (contihued)

TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

Investment
Property and
leasing finance Others Corporate Consolidated
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BALANCE SHEET
ASSETS
Segment ussets 3.550 274911 2,354 37,709 318,524
Interests in ussociutes - - - 1,797,104 1,797,104
Totul ussets 3.550 274911 2,354 1,834,813 2,115,628
LIABILITIES
Segment liubilities 44 1,502 853 19,720 22,119
Convertible notes, bank
borrowinys und other louns - - - 604,075 604,075
Totul liubilities 44 1,502 853 623,795 626,194
OTHER INFORMATION
Cupitul udditions - 27 8 724 759
Depreciution und umortisution
of property, plunt and equipment 371 354 25 1,015 1,765
Amortisution of deferred expenditure
onh issuunce of convertible hotes - - - 3,114 3,114

Geographical segments

The followiny tuble provides un unalysis of the Group’s turnover und profit from operutions by yeoyraphicul
murket, irrespective of the origin of the gyoods/services:

Profit
Turnover from operations

2003 2002 2003 2002

HK$°000 HKS 000 HK$°000 HKS 000

Hony Kony 760,602 35,346 70,454 4,464
The People’s Republic of Chinu

other thun Hony Kony (the “PRC") 4,943 63 113 173)

Others 3,152 4,738 (835) (1,231)

768,697 40,147 69,732 3,060

The followiny is un analysis of the currying amount of segment ussets und cupitul additions, unulysed by the
geoyruphicul ureu in which the ussets ure locuted:

Hony Kony
PRC
Others

:

Carrying amount

of segment assets

Capital additions

2003 2002 2003 2002
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HKS$ 000
4,019,265 2,084,705 3,303 732
116,290 3,506 8,640 -
698,583 27.417 80 27
4,834,138 2,115,628 12,023 759

ITC Corporation Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003

5. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS 000
Surplus arising from revaluution of land aund buildings 242 250
Amortisation of heyutive goodwill 18,895 -
Bud debts recovered 10,503 3.580
Compensution recovered from u default purchuser
in respect of disposul of property in previous yeaur 57,917 -
87,557 3,830
6. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS 000
Profit from operations has been arrived ut ufter charging:
Auditors’ remuneraution 1,081 435
Allowunces for doubtful debfts 4,276 4914
Depreciution und umortisution of property, plunt and
equipment (hotfe (u) below) 18,756 1,765
Loss on disposul of property, plant und eqyuipment 2,746 62
Minimum leuse puyments under operuting leuses in respect of:
Premises 1,743 539
Plant and machinery 262 -
Stuff costs, including directors” emoluments (hote (b) below) 48,004 16,126
and ufter crediting:
Interest income 19,612 26,542
Rentul income unhder operuting leuses in respect of:
Premises, net of outyoinys of HK$2,512,000 (2002: HK$32,000) 9,052 1,688
Plant and machinery 94 -
Notes:
2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS$ 000
() Depreciution und umortisution of property, plunt
and eyuipment:
Ownhed ussets 18,925 1,765
Less: Amount cupitulised in respect of confracts in progress (169) -
18,756 1,765
(b) Staff costs:
Suluries und other benefits 110,697 15,589
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, net of
forfeited contributions of upproximutely
HK$2,241,000 (2002: HK$39,000) 1,366 537
112,063 16,126
Less: Amount cupitulised in respect of confracts in proyress (64,059) -
48,004 16,126
e ITC Corporation Limited -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003

7. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the emoluments of the directors und the five highest puid individuuls for the year are us follows:

(a) Directors’ emoluments

2003 2002
HK$’000 HKS 000
Directors’ fees:
- executive 84 90
- independent non-executive 240 220
324 310
Other emoluments (executive directors):
— sularies und other benefits 11,824 12,052
- retirement benefit scheme contributions 829 543
12,653 12,595
12,977 12,905
Emoluments of the directors were within the following bunds:
2003 2002
Number of Number of
directors directors
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 5 5
HK$1,000,001 to HKS$1,500,000 - 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 4 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 - 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2 1

(b) Employees’ emoluments

The five highest puid individuauls in the Group for euch of the two years ended 31st March, 2003 were
dll directors und information regurding their emoluments hus been included in the disclosures in
puragraph (u) ubove.

During the yeur, no emoluments were puid by the Group to the five highest puid individudls, including

directors, us un inducement to join or upon joining the Group or us compensation for loss of office. In
addition, hone of the directors hus wuived uny emoluments during the yeuar,
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003

8. FINANCE COSTS

2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS 000

Amortisution of deferred expenditure on issuunce of
convertible notes 2,385 3.114

Interest payuble on:
Bunk borrowings wholly repuyuble within five years 4,394 646
Bunk borrowinygs hot wholly repuyuble within five yeurs 276 -
Convertible notes 27,247 43,685
Other borrowings wholly repayuble within five years 2,817 2,001
Other finunce churges 274 -
37,393 49,446
Less: Amount cupitdlised in respect of confracts in proyress (713) -
36,680 49,446
9. INVESTMENT (EXPENSES) INCOME - NET

2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS 000
Surplus arising from revaluution of investment properties - 125
Guin on disposul of investment properties 1 216
Guin on disposul of listed other investments 669 -
Net unreulised holding (loss) yuin on listed other investments (3,049 232
Impairment loss on investment securities (20,410 -
(22,789 573

10. GAIN ON DISPOSAL AND DILUTION OF INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

2003 2002

HK$°000 HKS 000

Guin on disposul of interests in subsidiaries - 6
Guin on dilution of interests in ussociutes - 2,122
- 2,128

11.  IMPAIRMENT LOSS IN RESPECT OF GOODWILL

At 31st Murch, 2002, the directors estimuted that the recoveruble umount of the interest in un ussociute wus
net murket selling price und un impuirment loss on goodwill arising from acquisition of that ussociute of
HK$195,466,000 hud beehn recoynised in the finunciul stutements for the yeur ended 31st Murch, 2002 in
cohsiderution of the operating results of that ussociute.
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12. TAXATION
2003 2002
HK$’000 HKS 000
The charge comprises:

Hony Kony Profits Tux 176 -
Overseus tuxation 1 -
Share of tux on results of ussociutes 23,839 16,853
24,016 16,853

Deferred tuxation (note 34)
Effect on chunge in tux rate 3,483 -
Credit for the yeur (2,664) -
819 -
24,835 16,853

Honyg Kony Profits Tux is culculuted at the rate of 16% (2002: 16%) of the estimuted ussessuble profits derived
from Honhy Kony for the yeur,

Overseus tuxution is culculated ut the rutes prevuiling in the respective jurisdictions.

13. DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of u dividend to ordinury shareholders for the year ended 31st
Murch, 2003.

Preference shure dividend on the 267,980,000 compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares ut
HKS$0.069 per shure per unnum hus hot been uccrued for the year in the finuncial stutements.

14. LOSS PER SHARE

The culculution of the busic und diluted loss per shure is bused on the followiny dutu:

2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS 000
Loss for the yeur (355,408) (289,310)
Dividend for preference shures (18,491) (18.,491)
Loss for the purposes of busic loss per share (373,899 (307,801)
Effect of dilutive potentiul ordinury shares:
Adjustment to the shure of results of subsidiuries
bused on dilution of their eurnings per share (1,370 -
Adjustment to the shure of results of ussociutes
bused on dilution of their eurninys per share - (1,324
Loss for the purposes of diluted loss per share (375,269) (309,125)
Number Number
of shares of shares
Weighted averuagye number of ordinary shares for the
purposes of busic und diluted loss per share 630,960,774 607,659,374

The convertible notes ure unti-dilutive us the exercise of these convertible notes would result in a decreuse
in loss per shure for both yeurs.
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15.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant,
machinery Motor Furniture
Land and and office vehicles and
buildings equipment and yachts fixtures Total

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THE GROUP
COST OR VALUATION
At 1st April, 2002 19,068 946 10,779 2,207 33.000
Translution adjustments 1,456 20 53 71 1,600
On ucyuisition of subsidiaries 235,409 468,646 62,370 132,340 898,765
Additions - 2,439 1,989 7.595 12,023
Disposuls - (30,726) (2,501 (137) (33,364)
Written back on revaluution a9 - - - a9
At 31st March, 2003 255,914 441,325 72,690 142,076 912,005
Comprising:
At cost - 441,325 72,690 142,076 656,091
At directors’ valuution 16,227 - - - 16,227
At valuation - 2003 239,687 - - - 239,687

255,914 441,325 72,690 142,076 912,005
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
At 1st April, 2002 - 526 5,870 993 7,389
Trunslution udjustments - 17 39 61 117
On ucyuisition of subsidiaries - 315,397 35,951 63,440 414,788
Provided for the yeur 1,509 10,763 2,696 3.957 18,925
Eliminuted on disposuls - (15,877) (1,049 (110) (17.,036)
Written back on revuluation (1,509 - - - (1,509
At 31st March, 2003 - 310,826 43,507 68,341 422,674
NET BOOK VALUES
At 31st March, 2003 255,914 130,499 29,183 73,735 489,331
At 31st March, 2002 19,068 420 4,909 1.214 25,611

Lund und buildings of the Group were revulued either by RHL Appruisal Ltd., un independent professional
property valuer on un open maurket value busis or by the directors of the Group on un existing use busis us ut
31st Maurch, 2003. This revuluution gyuve rise to u surplus on revaluution of HKS1,490,000 (2002: HK$250,000) of
which HK$242,000 (2002: HK$250,000), HK$805,000 (2002: nil) und HK$443,000 (2002: nil) hus been credited to
the income statement, properties revaluution reserve und shared by the minority shareholders of u subsidiury
of the Compuny respectively.

The het book values of lund und buildings held by the Group us ut the bulunce sheet dute comprised:

2003 2002

HK$°000 HKS 000

Freehold properties in Canadu 19,087 17,618

Lony term leusehold properties in PRC 2,623 1,450
Medium term leusehold properties in:

Hony Kony 233,600 -

PRC 604 -

255,914 19,068

As ut 31st Murch, 2003, had the Group’s lund und buildihnys been curried ut cost less uccumulated
depreciution und umortisution, the currying vulue would huve been upproximutely HK$258,155,000 (2002:
HK$22,508,000).
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

THE GROUP

2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS 000

VALUATION
At 1st April 1,125 23,800
Disposuls (1,125 (22,800)
On ucyuisition of subsidiaries 572,608 -
Surplus arising on revuluution - 125
At 31st Murch 572,608 1,125

The Group’s investment properties are held for rental purposes under operating leuses. The investment
properties situated in Hohy Konyg were revulued on 31st March, 2003, on un open murket value busis, by RHL
Appruisul Ltd., un independent professionul valuer, The vuluation attributable to these investment properties
umounted to upproximutely HK$529,000,000 (2002: Nil) und nho surplus or deficit urose on revuluution of these
properties.

The Group’s investment properties situated in PRC were revaluuted on 31st March, 2003 by the directors ut
HK$43,608,000 (2002: HKS$1,125,000) with reference to the vulue us quoted in u sule und purchuse uygreement
entered info by the Group in April 2003. No surplus or deficit urose on revuluution of these properties. (2002:
surplus of HK$125,000 credited to the income stutement).

The currying umount of investment properties held by the Group us ut the bulunce sheet dute comprises the

followiny:
2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS 000
Lony term leusehold properties in Hony Kony 74,000 -
Medium term leusehold properties in:
Honyg Kony 455,000 -
PRC 43,608 1,125
572,608 1,125
17. NEGATIVE GOODWILL
THE GROUP
HK$°000
NEGATIVE GOODWILL
On ucyuisition of subsidiaries 415,230
Transferred from neyutive goodwill on ussociutes (hote 19(b)) 40,305
At 31st March, 2003 455,535
AMORTISATION
Transferred from neyutive goodwill on ussociutes (hote 19(b)) 2,060
Provided for the yeur 18,895
At 31st March, 2003 20,955
CARRYING VALUE
At 31st March, 2003 434,580

The heygutive yoodwill is umortised over u period of 8 yeurs.
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
THE COMPANY

2003 2002

HK$’000 HKS 000

Unlisted shares, ut cost 1 1
Amounts due from subsidiaries 2,910,837 2,972,906
2,910,838 2,972,907
Less: Allowunces for amounts due from subsidiaries (960,877) (960,877)
1,949,961 2,012,030

Detudils of the Compuny’s principul subsidiaries us ut 31st March, 2003 are set out in hote 49.

The umounts due from subsidiuries ure unsecured. Of these umounts, uh amount of upproximutely
HK$2,651,577,000 (2002: Nil) beurs interest ut commerciul rutes und the remuining bulunce is interest-free. In
the opinion of the directors, the umounts will not be repayuble within twelve months from the bulunce sheet
dute. Accordingly, the amounts ure shown us hoh-current.

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

THE GROUP

2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS 000

Share of net ussets of ussociutes:
Listed in Hony Kony 501,992 1,837,156
Listed overseus 652,590 3.418
Unlisted (2,986) 4,329
Goodwill (hote ) 554 -
Negutive goodwill (hote b) (17,229 (47,799
1,134,921 1,797,104
Amounts due from ussociutes (hote f) 217,911 -
1,352,832 1,797,104

Market value of listed securities:
Honyg Kony 42,075 335,523
Overseus 964,965 33.945
1,007,040 369,468
e ITC Corporation Limited -
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19.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes:

(@

()

Included in interests in ussociutes is yoodwill urising from ucquisition of un ussociute:

Goodwill
Bulunce ut Tst April, 2002
Arising from additional interests in un ussociute
Bulance at 31st Murch, 2003
Amortisution and impuirment loss
Bulunce ut Tst April, 2002
Provided for the yeur

Bulunce at 31st Murch, 2003

Currying vulue
At 31st Murch, 2003

At 31st Murch, 2002

The goodwill is umortised over u period of 20 yeurs.

Included in interests in ussociutes is heyutive yoodwill urising from ucquisition of ussociutes:

Goodwill
Bulunce at Tst April, 2002
Arising from additional interests in ussociutes
Trunsferred to heyutive yoodwill of subsidiaries (hote d)

Bulance at 31st Murch, 2003
Amortisution
Bulunce ut Tst April, 2002
Provided for the yeur
Trunsferred to heyutive yoodwill of subsidiaries (hote d)

Bulance at 31st Murch, 2003

Currying vulue
At 31st Murch, 2003

At 31st Murch, 2002

The neyutive goodwill is umortised over u period of 20 yeurs,
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

©) The Group increused its equity interest in Hunny Holdings Limited ("Hunny”) from 27.73% at the beyinniny of the
yeur to 28.26% ut the end of the yeur und increused its eyuity interest in Star Eust Holdings Limited (“Star Eust”) from
21.11% ut the beyginniny of the yeur to 25.91% ut the end of the yeur. Extructs of the consoliduted results und
finunciul position of Hunny und Star Eust from their respective uudited financial stutements for the yeur ended 31st
March, 2003 ure set out in hote 50.

() On 25th October, 2002, the Compuny unhouhced thut its indirect wholly-owhed subsidiary, Hollyfield Group Limited
("Hollyfield”) will muke voluntury conditional cush offers (the “Offers”) ut the price of HK$0.30 for euch shure und
HK$0.01 for euch warrant in Paul V. - ITC, other thun those shures und wuarrants presently owned by the Compuny or
its wholly-owned subsidiuries. When the Offers closed in December 2002, Hollyfield held more than 50% of the voting
rights in Paul V. - ITC und, uccordingly, Paul Y. - ITC wus clussified us u subsidiury of the Compuny. The Group
increused its equity inferest in Paul Y. - ITC from 42.59% ut the beyinniny of the yeur to 64.46% ut the end of the yeur.

Paul Y. - ITC hus not uccounted for its share of losses of un ussociute umounting to HK$123,711,000 us those losses
drise on u contruct ure recoveruble in full under yuurauntees provided by un ex-shareholder of the ussociute. Puul V.
- ITC proceeded u court uction uguinst the ex-shureholder to recover the losses foyether with interest und other
expenses incurred. The directors of Paul Y. - ITC, haviny tfuken leyul udvice, believe that the suit is vulid aund the
losses cun be fully recovered from the ex-shareholder.

(e) Downer EDI Limited ("Downer”), Paul Y. - ITC’s mujor ussociute, becume un ussociute of the Group upon consolidation
of Paul VY. - ITC in December 2002. Downher is u compuny listed in Austruliu und New Zeulund und its finunciul yeur
end dute is 30th June. Only published finuncial informution of Downer will be avdiluble und used by the Group in
applying the eyuity method. Accordingly, the Group’s share of interest in Downer ut 31st March, 2003 is culculuted
bused on the net ussets of Downer ut 31st December, 2002. Extructs from the published finuncial information of
Downer us ut 31st December, 2002 ure set out in hote 50.

() The umounts due from ussociutes ure unsecured. Of these umounts, un umount of upproximately HK$214,603,000
beurs interest ut commercial rutes und the remuaining bulunce is interest-free. In the opinion of the directors, the

amount will hot be repuyuble within twelve months from the bulunce sheet dute. Accordingly, the uamounts ure
shown us hon-current.

Detuils of the Group’s principul ussociutes ut 31st March, 2003 ure set out in note 49.

20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

THE GROUP
2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS 000
Shure of net ussets 3,743 -
Amount due from u jointly controlled entity 5,000 -
8,743 -

The umount due from u jointly controlled entity is unsecured und interest-free. In the opinion of the directors,
the amount will hot be repuyuble within twelve months from the bulunce sheet dute. Accordingly, the
amount is shown s hon-current.

Detuils of the Group’s jointly controlled entities us at 31st Murch, 2003 ure set out in note 49.
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

THE GROUP
Investment Other
securities investments Total
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002

HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$ 000

Listed equity securities:

- Hony Kony 658,457 - 26,527 2 684,984 2
- Elsewhere 3,623 - - 2,417 3,623 2,417
662,080 - 26,527 2,419 688,607 2,419

Other unlisted investments - - 5,035 - 5,035 -
Unlisted club debentures - - 8,977 1,589 8,977 1,589
Totul 662,080 - 40,539 4,008 702,619 4,008

Market value of listed
securities 22,877 - 26,527 2,419 49,404 2,419

Cuarrying umount analysed
for reportiny purposes us:

Current - - 26,527 - 26,527 -
Non-current 662,080 - 14,012 4,008 676,092 4,008
662,080 - 40,539 4,008 702,619 4,008

Particulars of the equity securities held by the Group us ut 31st Murch, 2003 disclosed in uccordunce with
Section 129(2) of the Compunies Ordinunce ure us follows:

Proportion of nominal
value of issued

Place of Type of share capital indirectly
Name of company incorporation investment held by the Company
Chinu Strateyic Holdings Hony Kony Ordinury shares 14.55%

Limited (*Chinu Struteyic”)

Chinu Struteyic is u compuny with its shares and warrants listed on the Honyg Konhy Stock Exchunyge. Chinu
Strateyic is un investment holding compuny und ifs subsidiaries ure principully enguyed in the business of
the tire munufucturing; manufacturing, retailing and distribution of Chinese medicine, western phurmaceuticuls
and heulth food; und investment in infrastructure projects. The directors are of the opinion that the recoverable
amount of the investment securities, estimated by reference to the cush flows from the investment projects
discounted ut the prevudiling interest rates, ure worth at leust their carrying value.

22. CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLE

The convertible notes ure guurunteed by u compuny with its shares listed on the Hony Kony Stock Exchunye
(the “"Guuruntor”), beur interest ut 5% per unnum und will be mutured on 28th August, 2005. The convertible
notes cun be converted by the Group into shares of the Guuruntor ut the specified price (subject to
adjustment) on or before 28th August, 2005.
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23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORKS

THE GROUP

2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS 000

Contracts in proygress ut the baluance sheet dute:
Contruct costs incurred to dute 32,580,432 -
Recoynised profits less recoynised losses 865,832 -
33,446,264 -
Less: Proyress billinys (33,740,185) -
(293,921) -

Represented by:

Amounts due from customers for contract works 200,934 -
Amounts due to customers for contract works (494,855) -
(293,921) -

At 31st March, 2003, retentions held by customers for contract works included in debtors, deposits und
prepuyments umounted to upproximutely HK$367,453,000 (2002: Nil). There wus ho udvunces received from
customers for contract works.

24. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

The followinyg is un uged unulysis of frade debtors:

THE GROUP

2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS 000

Trade debtors
0-30 duys 400,424 1,312
31-60 duys 5,724 98
61-90 duys 5,224 16
Over 90 duys 70,739 123
482,111 1,549
Other debtors, deposits und prepuyments 597,240 1,026
1,079,351 2,575

The Group’s credit terms for its contracting business ure heyotiuted with, and entered intfo under, normaul
commerciul terms with its frade customers. Trade debtors urise from property leusing business ure puyuble
monthly in advance und the credit ferms grunted by the Group to other frade debtors hormully range from
30 duys to 90 duys.

25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

The umounts due from ussociutes of the Group dre unsecured und repuyuble within one year, Of these

umounts, an uamount of upproximutely HK$86,851,000 (2002: HK$114,600,000) beurs interest ut commercial
rates und the remuining bulunce is interest-free.
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26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

The umounts due from jointly controlled entities of the Group dre unsecured, interest-free und repuyuble
within one yeur.

27. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES

THE GROUP

2003 2002

HK$’000 HKS 000

Rosedule Hotel Group Limited und its subsidiaries 131,546 1,333

Chinu Struteyic und its subsidiuries 158,093 26,769

M Chunnel Corporution Limited ("M Channel”) and its subsidiaries 10,181 -
Sing Puo Mediu Group Limited (how knowh us Leudership

Publishing Group Limited) und its subsidiaries - 17.644

Other related compunies 28 -

299,848 45,746

The Group hus either indirect beneficidl interests or has common directors in the ubove reluted compuanies.

The uamounts ure unsecured und repuyuble within one yeur, Of the umounts, an amount of upproximutely
HK$278,380,000 (2002: HK$42,000,000) beurs interest ut commerciul rutes und the remuining bulunce is interest-
free. Detuils of the trunsuctions und bulunces with reluted compunies ure set out in hote 48.

28. LOANS RECEIVABLE

The umounts ure receivuble within ohe yeaur. Of these umounts, umounts of upproximutely HK$20,898,000
(2002: HK$4,724,000) und HK$1,898,000 (2002: Nil) for the Group und the Compuny, respectively, bear interest
at commercidal rates und the remuining balance is interest-free.

29. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

The followinyg is un uged unulysis of frade creditors:

THE GROUP

2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS 000

Trade creditors
0-30 duys 273,309 11,592
31-60 days 24,780 81
61-90 days 9,342 1
Over 90 duys 19,556 47
326,987 11,721
Other creditors and uccrued expenses 470,368 10,287
797,355 22,008

30. AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES/JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES/RELATED COMPANIES

The bulunces of the Group ure unsecured, interest-free und repuyuble within one yeuar.
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31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

THE GROUP
AND
THE COMPANY
2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS 000
HK$392,500,000 convertible hotes due 2006 (hote u) 392,500 -
Less: Unumortised deferred expenditure (701) -
391,799 -
HK$120,000,000 convertible notes due 2002 (hote b) - 120,000
Less: Unumortised deferred expenditure - (344)
- 119.656
HK$460,000,000 convertible notes due 2003 (hote b) - 460,000
Less: Unumortised deferred expenditure - (2,021
- 457,979
391,799 577,635
The convertible hotes ure repuyuble us follows:
Within one yeur - 577,635
More than two yeuars, but hot exceediny five yeurs 391,799 -
391,799 577,635
Less: Amount due ufter one yeur und
shown under non-current liubilities (391,799 -
Amount due within one yeuar - 577,635

Notes:

() Pursuant to un ordinury resolution pussed ut u speciul yenherul meeting of the Compuny held on 9th October, 2002,
the Compuny issued on 3rd March, 2003 HK$250,000,000 und HK$142,500,000 convertible notes to Dr. Chun Kwok
Keuny, Chuarles, u director und a substuntial shareholder of the Compuny, und independent investors by way of

subscription und plucement, respectively.

The notes beur interest ut the best lendiny rate of Hony Kony Dollur yuoted by The Hongkonhy und Shanghui
Banking Corporution Limited (the “"Best Lending Rute”) und puyuble semi-aunnuully in arreurs,

All the noteholders have un option to convert the convertible hotes into ordinury shures of the Compuny ut an
initial conversion price of HK$0.30 per share, subject to udjustment, on or before 3rd Murch, 2006. The ordinary
shares tfo be issued upon such conversion dre to runk puri pussu in dll respects with the ordinary shures of the
Compuny in issue on the relevunt conversion dute.

(b) The convertible hotes bore interest ut the Best Lendiny Rute und were redeemed during the yeur.
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32.

33.

BANK BORROWINGS

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2003 2002 2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS 000 HK$°000 HKS 000
Bunk borrowings comprise:
Mortguyge louns 446,135 - - -
Bunk louns 290,000 - - -
Trust receipt louns 23,358 - - -
Bunk overdrufts 45,535 9.123 9,936 -
805,028 9.123 9,936 -
Anulysed us:
Secured 736,354 9.109 - -
Unsecured 68,674 14 9,936 -
805,028 9.123 9,936 -
The bunk borrowinys ure repuyuble us follows:
Within one yeur or on demand 167,853 9.123 9,936 -
More than one yeur, but hot exceediny
two yeuars 30,900 - - -
More thun two yeuars, but hot exceediny
five yeurs 578,700 - - -
More than five yedars 27,575 - - -
805,028 9.123 9,936 -
Less: Amount due within one yeur or
oh demund showhn under current
liubilities (167,853) (9,123) (9,936) -
Amount due ufter one year 637,175 - - -
OTHER LOANS
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2003 2002 2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS 000 HK$°000 HKS 000
Secured louns 60,000 - - -
Unsecured louns 83,817 17,317 83,817 17,317
143,817 17,317 83,817 17,317
The other louns ure repuyuble us follows:
Within ohe year or on demund 77,317 17,317 17,317 17,317
More than one yeur, but hot exceediny
two yeuars 66,500 - 66,500 -
143,817 17,317 83,817 17,317
Less: Amount due within one yeur or
oh demund showhn under current
liubilities (77,317) 7,317 (17,317) 7.317)
Amount due ufter one year 66,500 - 66,500 -

The louns bore interest ut commerciul rates.
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34. DEFERRED TAXATION

THE GROUP
Recognised Unrecognised

2003 2002 2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS 000 HK$’000 HKS 000
Bulunce brought forwurd - - (57,759) (52,284
On ucyuisition of subsidiaries 3,111 - (105,950) -
Movement for the year 819 - (36,327) (5.475)
Bulance curried forward 3,930 - (200,036) (57,759

At the bulunce sheet dute, the mujor components of the net deferred taxation lidabilities (ussets) of the
Group, recoyghised und uhrecoyhised, ure us follows:

Recognised Unrecognised
2003 2002 2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS 000 HK$°000 HKS 000

Tax effect of timiny differences
attributable to:

Excess (shortfull) of tux allowunces over

depreciution 14,294 - (5,949) 660
Different method in recognition of

contract income for uccounting und

taxation purposes (3,169) - (3,508) -
Unutilised tux losses (7,195) - (190,579) (58.,419)
3,930 - (200,036) (57.759)

The net deferred tuxution usset hus not been recoynised in the finunciul stutements us redlisation of this
asset in the foreseeuble future is uncertuin.

The mujor compohnents of net deferred tuxution credit of the Group hot recognised in the finunciul stutements
for the yeur are us follows:

2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS 000

Tax effect of timiny differences uttributable to:
Shortfull of tux ullowunces over depreciation 4,992 197
Effect on change in tux rate 6,175 -
Tux losses arising 25,160 5,278
36,327 5,475

The Compuny did hot huve uny sighificunt uhrecoynised deferred tuxation for the yeur or ut the bulunce
sheet date.

e ITC Corporation Limited -
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35. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS

THE GROUP
2003 2002
HK$’000 HKS 000
Bulunce brought forwurd - -
On ucyuisition of subsidiuries 1,727 -
Bulunce curried forward 1,727 -

The provision represents lony service puyments mude in respect of quulified employees of the Group pursuunt
to the reyuirements under the Employment Ordinance.

36. SHARE CAPITAL

Number of shares Value
HK$°000
Authorised:
Ordinury shures of HK$0.10 euch
At 1st April, 2001 and 31st March, 2002 2,000,000,000 200,000
Increuse during the year (hotfe q) 1.000,000,000 100,000
At 31st March, 2003 3.000,000,000 300,000
Compulsorily convertible cumulative preference
shares of HKS$0.10 euch
At 1st April, 2001, 31st March, 2002
and 31st Murch, 2003 280,000,000 28,000
Issued und fully puid:
Ordinury shures of HK$0.10 euch
At 1st April, 2001 525,960,774 52,596
Placing of hew shures (hote b) 105,000,000 10,500
At 31st Murch, 2002 und 31st Murch, 2003 630,960,774 63,096
Compulsorily convertible cumulative preference
shaures of HK$0.10 euch
At 1st April, 2001, 31st March, 2002
and 31st March, 2003 267,980,000 26,798

Notes:

() On 9th October, 2002, the authorised ordinury share cupital of the Compuny wus increused from HK$200,000,000 to
HK$300,000,000 by the creution of 1,000,000,000 ordinury shures of HKS$0.10 euch.

(b) On 21st June, 2001, the Compuny ullotted 105,000,000 hew ordinury shares of HK$0.10 euch ut un issue price of
HK$0.60 per shure to Guluxyway. The pluciny price of HK$0.60 per shure represented u discount of upproximutely
18.1% to the uveruye closiny price of upproximutely HKS$0.733 per ordinury shure over the lust 10 trading duys, up to
and including 18th June, 2001 on the Hohy Kony Stock Exchunge und ulso represented a discount of upproximutely
14.3% to the closiny price of the ordinury shures of HK$0.70 quoted on the Hony Kony Stock Exchunge on 18th June,
2001. The proceeds of the subscription were used us udditionul working cupital of the Group, upurt from HK$12.4
million which were used to subscribe for the shures in Star Eust pursuunt fo u conditionul ugreement us unnounced
by Stur Eust on 12th June, 2001.

All the new ordinury shures issued by the Compuny runked puri pussu with the then existing ordinary shares of the
Compuny in dll respects.
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36. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The preference shures ure non-voting, hon-redeemuble und ure entitled to u cumulutive dividend of HK$0.069
per shure per unnum. The preference shures runk in priority fo the ordinury shares in the Compuny us to
dividends und return of cupitul. The preference shures ure convertible into ordinary shures of the Compuny
at the option of the holders at any time. However, the preference shares aure subject to compulsory conversion
at the option of the Compuny in uny of the followiny cuses:

- the closiny price of the ordinary shares in the Compuny on the Hony Kony Stock Exchaunge is 125% or
more of the udjusted conversion value of HK$21.20, subject to further udjustments, for twenty
cohsecutive trading days; or

- there dre less than 50,000,000 preference shures in issue.

37. SHARE OPTIONS
(a) Share options of the Company

The Compuny udopted u shure option scheme (the “ITC Scheme”) on 16th Junuury, 2002 (the
“Adoption Dute”) for the purpose of providing incentive or rewurd to eligible persons for their
contribution to, und contihuiny efforts to promote the interests of, the Compuny. The bourd of directors
of the Compuny muay in its ubsolute discretion, subject to the terms of the ITC Scheme, gyrunt options
to uny employees (includinyg directors) of the Compuny und its subsidiuries to subscribe for ordihary
shares of the Compuny.

The muximum number of ordinary shures which muy be issued upon the exercise of dll options to be
grunted under the ITC Scheme und uny other shure option scheme(s) udopted by the Compuny must
not in ugygreyute exceed 10% of the totul number of issued ordinury shures of the Compuny us ut the
Adoption Dute. The totul humber of ordinury shares uvdiluble for issue under the ITC Scheme wus
63,096,077 representing 10% of the uyyregyute number of issued ordinary shares of the Compuny us at
the dute of this report.

Unless upproved by the shureholders of the Compuny in generul meeting, the totdal number of ordinary
shures of the Compuhy issued und to be issued upon exercise of the options grunted und to be
granted (whether exercised, cuncelled or outstunding) under the ITC Scheme und uny other shaure
option scheme(s) of the Compuny to uny eligible person in uny 12-month period expiring on the dute
of offer shall hot exceed 1% of the totdl humber of the Compuny’s ordinury shares in issue from time
to time.

The period within which the options may be exercised will be determined by the Compuny ut the time
of grunt. This period must expire in uny event hot luter than the lust day of the 10 yeur period ufter the
Adoyption Dute. The ITC Scheme does not provide for uny minimum period for which un option must
be held before it cun be exercised. Options muy be grunted at un initiul puyment of HK$1.00 for euch
acceptunce of yrunt of option(s). The directors of the Compuny shull specify u dute, beiny u dute
not luter than 30 duys ufter (i) the dute on which the offer of the options is issued, or (ii) the dute on
which the conditions for the offer ure satisfied, by which the eligible person must uccept the offer or
be deemed to have declined it.

e ITC Corporation Limited -
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37. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
(a) Share options of the Company (continued)

The exercise price of the options will be determined by the directors of the Compuny (subject to
udjustments us provided in the rules of the ITC Scheme) which shull be ut leust the higher of (i) the
nominal vulue of the ordinury shares of the Compuny; (ii) the closing price of the ordinury shures of
the Compuny us stuted in the Hony Kony Stock Exchunye’s duily quotutions sheet on the dute of the
offer, which must be d business day; und (i) the uverage of the closing price of the ordinury shares of
the Compuny us stuted in the Hony Kony Stock Exchunge’s duily quotutions sheets for the five
business days immediutely precediny the dute of the offer.

The ITC Scheme shull be vulid und effective for u period of 10 yeurs commencinyg ufter the Adoption
Dute, ufter which period no further options shall be yrunted.

As ut 31st March, 2003, there were no outstundiny share options granted by the Compuny pursuunt to
the ITC Scheme. No shure options were grunted, exercised, cuncelled or lupsed during the yeur.

(b) Share options of Paul Y. - ITC
0] Initial Share Option Scheme of Paul Y. - ITC

In uccordunce with the Paul Y. - ITC’s shure option scheme (the “Paul Y. - ITC Initiul Scheme”)
which was adopted on Tst September, 1993 for recoynition of pust services contributed by the
eligible directors und employees, und will expire on 31st August, 2003, the directors of Paul V. -
ITC muy ut their discretion yrunt options to uny directors or full time employees of Paul V. - ITC
or uny of its subsidiuries ("Paul Y. - ITC Group”) to subscribe for shares in Paul VY. - ITC.

At 31st March, 2003, the humber of shares in respect of which options hud been yrunted und
remuined outstundinyg under the Paul Y. - ITC Initiul Scheme wus 16,100,000 (2002: 54,449,206),
representing 1.51% (2002: 5.25%) of the then issued shares of Paul V. - ITC. The muximum humber
of shures in respect of which options muy be yrunted under the Paul Y. - ITC Initial Scheme is
not permitted to exceed 10% of the issued shure cupitul of Paul VY. - ITC from time to time.

No option muy be ygranted to uny individuul under the Paul V. - ITC Initiul Scheme which, if
exercised in full, would result in the total number of shures of Paul V. - ITC ulreudy issued und
issuuble under dll the options previously grunted and to be yrunted to him which ure for the
time beiny subsisting und unexercised exceed 25% of the uygyregute number of shures of Puul
Y. - ITC for the time beiny issued und issuuble under the Paul Y. - ITC Initial Scheme.

The offer of u grunt of options muy be uccepted within 28 days from the dute of offer of
options, upon puyment of u considerution of HK$1.00 by the gruntee. In euch grunt of options,
the directors of Paul Y. - ITC muy ut their discretion determine the specific exercise period und
in uny event such period of time shull hot exceed u period of three yeurs commencing on the
expiry of six months uffer the dute of ucceptunce of options. The exercise price is determined
by the directors of Paul Y. - ITC, und will hot be less than the higher of the hominul vulue of the
shares of Paul Y. - ITC, und 80% of the uveruye closing prices of the shures of Paul V. - ITC on
the five tfruding duys immediutely precediny the dute of offer of options.

The followiny tuble discloses detuils of Puul VY. - ITC’s share options unhder the Paul Y. - ITC Inifial
Scheme und movements in such holdings duriny the yeur:

Number of shares of Paul Y. - ITC to be issued
upon exercise of the share options

Exercise price At 1.4.2001 Lapsed during At
Date of grant per share & 1.4.2002 the year 31.3.2003
HK$
18th December, 1998 0.6048 38,349,206 (38,349,2006) -
17th December, 1999 0.5552 16,100,000 - 16,100,000
54,449,206 (38,349,206) 16,100,000
e ITC Corporation Limited -
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37. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
(b) Share options of Paul Y. - ITC (continued)
0] Initial Share Option Scheme of Paul Y. - ITC (contihued)

The outstundiny options cun be exercised ut uny time during u period of three yeurs
commencinyg on the expiry of six months ufter the dute of ucceptunce of the options. Duriny
the yeur, no options huve been grunted under the Paul Y. - ITC Initiul Scheme.

Pursuunt to a speciul yenerul meeting held by the shareholders of Paul VY. - ITC on 27th August,
2002, Paul Y. - ITC hus terminuted the Puul Y. - ITC Initiul Scheme und udopted u hew shure
option scheme in order to comply with the umended rules of Chupter 17 of the Rules Governiny
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchunyge of Honyg Kony Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
Conseyuently, Paul Y. - ITC cun no lonyger grant uny further options under the Paul V. - ITC Initial
Scheme on its termination. However, dll outstandiny share options yrunted under the Paul Y. -
ITC Initiaul Scheme remuin in full force und effect.

W New Shure Optionh Scheme of Paul Y. - ITC

On 27th Auygust, 2002, Paul V. - ITC udopted u hew shure option scheme (the “Paul Y. - ITC New
Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentive or rewurd to uny employees, executives or
officers, directors of the Paul V. - ITC Group or uny invested entity and uny celebrity, consultunt,
udviser or ugent of uny member of the Paul Y. - ITC Group or uny invested entity, who have
contributed or will contribute to the yrowth und development of the Puul VY. - ITC Group or uny
invested entity (“Eligible Person”). The Paul Y. - ITC New Scheme will remuin in force for u period
of 10 yeurs from thut dute.

Under the Paul V. - ITC New Scheme, the directors of Puul VY. - ITC muy ut their discretion gyrunt
options to uny Eligible Person to subscribe for shares in Paul VY. - ITC without consideration. The
directors of Paul V. - ITC muay ut their discretion determine the specific exercise period which
should expire in uny event no luter thun ten yeurs from dute of udoption of the Puul Y. - ITC
New Scheme. The exercise price is determined by the directors of Puul Y. - ITC und will be at
leust the higher of: (i) the subscription price us is permissible under the Listing Rules from time to
time und (ii) the nhominal value of Paul V. - ITC’s shares.

The total number of shures of Paul Y. - ITC in respect of which options may be granted under
the Puul Y. - ITC New Scheme und uny other shure option scheme(s) of Paul VY. - ITC shall not
exceed 103,674,492 shures, representing 9.75% of the issued shure cupital of Puul VY. - ITC as ut
the duate of this report. Subject to the upprovul of the shareholders of the Paul Y. - ITC in
genherul meeting, the limit muy be refreshed to 10% of the total humber of shares in issue us ut
the dute of upprovul by the shareholders of Paul Y. - ITC in generdl meeting. Notwithstandiny
the foreyoiny, the muximum number of shares which muy be issued upon exercise of ull
outstundiny options grunted und yet to be exercised under the Puul VY. - ITC New Scheme und
uny other shure option scheme(s) of Puul V. - ITC must not in ugyreyute exceed 30% of the
total number of shares in issue from time to time.

The muximum humber of shares of Paul Y. - ITC in respect of which options muy be granted to
euch Eligible Person under the Paul V. - ITC New Scheme und uny other shure option scheme(s)
of Puul V. - ITC (includiny both exercised, cuncelled und outstunding options) in auny 12-month
period shull hot exceed 1% of the totul humber of shures in issue from fime to time unless such
grunt hus been duly upproved by shareholders of Paul V. - ITC ut yenerdl meeting ut which the
Eligible Person und his ussociutes (us defined in the Listing Rules) ubstuined from voting. Options
grunted to u substuntiul shareholder and/or un independent honh-executive director or uny of
their respective ussociutes (us defined in the Listing Rules) in uny 12-month period ih excess of
0.10% of totul humber of shares in issue und huve un uyygreyute vulue exceediny HK$5,000,000
must be upproved by the shareholders of Paul Y. - ITC in generdl meetinyg in udvunce.

No options have been yrunted under the Puul Y. - ITC New Scheme since its adoption.

e ITC Corporation Limited -
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38. RESERVES

Capital
Share Contributed redemption  Accumulated

premium surplus reserve losses Total
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

THE COMPANY
At 1st April, 2001 153,843 2,117,993 908 (208.116) 2,064,628
Issue of ordinury shares 52,500 - - - 52,500
Shares issue expenses (1,121) - - - 1,121
Loss for the yeur - - - (725,283) (725,283)
At 31st Murch, 2002 205,222 2,117,993 908 (933.399) 1,390,724
Loss for the yeur - - - (23.881) (23.,881)
At 31st Murch, 2003 205,222 2,117,993 908 (957.280) 1,366,843

Notes:

The contributed surplus of the Compuny comprises the difference between the underlying net ussets of the subsidiaries
acyuired by the Compuny und the nhominul umount of the Compuny’s ordinary shure cupitdl issued us considerution for
the acyuisition und the credits arising from the changes in the caupitul und reserves of the Compuny und the trunsfers to
the accumuluted losses urising from cupitul reorgaunisution.

Under the Compunies Act 1981 of Bermudu, the contributed surplus account of the Compuny is avuiluble for distribution.
However, the Compuny cunnot declure or puy u dividend, or muke u distribution out of contributed surplus if:

() it is, or would ufter the puyment be, unuble to puay its liubilities us they become due; or

(b) the reulisuble vulue of its ussets would thereby be less than the uyyregate of its liubilities und its issued share cupital
and shure premium accounts.

In the opinion of the directors, subject to the restrictions us stipuluted in the Compaunies Act 1981 of Bermudu
as described ubove, the Compuny’s reserves avuiluble for distribution fo shareholders were us follows:

2003 2002

HK$°000 HKS 000

Contributed surplus 2,117,993 2,117,993
Accumuluted losses (957,280) (933,399
1,160,713 1,184,594
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39. PURCHASE OF SUBSIDIARIES

2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS 000

NET ASSETS PURCHASED
Property, plant and equipment 483,977 -
Investment properties 572,608 -
Interests in ussociutes 661,008 -
Interests in jointly controlled entities 11,848 -
Investments in securities 695,676 -
Amounts due from customers for contract works 218,650 -
Debtors, deposits und prepuyments 1,103,763 -
Amounts due from ussociutes 191,906 -
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities 207 -
Amounts due from reluted compunies 248,876 -
Louns receivuble 155,697 -
Tuxution recoveruble 5,412 -
Bunk deposits 99,881 -
Bunk bulunces und cush 56,548 -
Amounts due fo customers for confract works (540,579) -
Creditors und uccrued expenses (858,727) -
Amounts due fo ussociutes (7,772 -
Amounts due to jointly controlled entities (47,460) -
Amounts due to reluted compunies (1,774 -
Taxation puyuble (3,775 -
Bunk overdrufts (3,647) -
Bunk borrowinys (634,118 -
Minority interests (864,617) -
Deferred tuxution 3,111 -
Provision for lony service puyments (1,727) -
1,638,750 -
Neyutive yoodwill urising on ucyuisition of subsidiaries (415,230 -
1,123,520 -

Sutisfied by:

Cush 71,496 -
Reclussification from interests in ussociutes 1,052,024 -
1,123,520 -

The subsidiuries ucyuired during the yeur contributed to the Group’s turnover und loss of HK$746,868,000 und
HKS$1,516,000, respectively.
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39. PURCHASE OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS 000
PURCHASE OF SUBSIDIARIES
Cush consideration puid (71,496) -
Bunk deposits, bunk bulunces und cush aucyuired less
bunk overdrufts ucyuired 152,782 -
Net inflow of cush und cush eyuivalents in respect of
the purchase of subsidiaries 81,286 -

40. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION
During the yeur ended 31st Murch, 2003, un umount due from un ussociute of HK$28,000,000 wus settled by
distribution of 3,996,812,500 shures of 36.com Holdinys Limited (how known us M Chunnel), representiny
18.8% of its issued shure cupitdl.

During the yeur ended 31st Murch, 2002, un umount due from un ussociute of HK$22,500,000 wus settled by
distribution of 121,621,622 shaures of Stur Eust by the ussociute through the exercise of the conversion right in
a cohvertible note.

41. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operutes defined conftribution retirement benefit schemes for quulifying employees. The ussets of
the schemes ure sepurutely held in funds under the control of trustees.

The cost churged to the income statement represents contributions puyuble to the funds by the Group ut
rutes specified in the rules of the schemes. Where there ure employees who leuve the schemes prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the conftributions puydble by the Group ure reduced by the umount of
forfeited contributions.

At the bulunce sheet dute, there were no sighificant forfeited contributions which drose upon employees
leavinyg the schemes prior to their interests in the Group’s contributions becominy fully vested und which ure
avuiluble to reduce the conftributions puyuble by the Group in future yeurs.

The Group hus dlso joined u Mundutory Provident Fund Scheme ("MPF Scheme”). The MPF Scheme is reyistered
with the Mundutory Provident Fund Schemes Authority uhder the Mundutory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinunce. The ussets of the MPF Scheme ure held sepurutely from those of the Group in fuhds under the
control of un independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer und its employees ure
euch reyuired to muke contributions to the scheme at rutes specified in the rules. The only obligution of the
Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to muke the required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contribution is uvdiluble to reduce the contributions puyauble in future yeurs.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from the MPF Scheme charged to the income stutement
represent conftributions puyuble to funds by the Group ut the rates specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.
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42, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2003 2002 2003 2002
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$ 000

Outstundiny performunce bonds in

respect of construction contracts 740,529 - - -
Guuruntees yiven to baunks and

finunciul institutions in respect of

generul facilities grunted to:

Subsidiaries - - 62,899 -
Associutes 2,419 - - -

Financiul support given to un investee
compuny 4,355 - 4,355 -
747,303 - 67,254 -

In auddition to the ubove, the Group hus received clauims for dumuyes und injuries reluting to its construction
business. No provision hus been mude for these cluims us they ure either covered by insurance or will be
indemnified by other purties.

43. MATERIAL LITIGATION

The liyuidators of Hoi Sing Constfruction Compuny Limited ("Hoi Sing”), u former wholly-owned subsidiury of
the Compuny, instituted proceedinys uyguinst the Compuny on 10th July, 1998 claiming approximately
HK$297,441,000 plus interest pursuunt to un ulleyed yuuruntee by the Compuny for debt owed by Hoi Sing
Builders Limited to Hoi Sing. The Compuny does hot udmit the existence of the yuarantee, und hus put Hoi
Sing fo strict proof of its terms und the umounts cluimed under it. Even if the Court upholds the ulleyed
guuruntee, the Compuny hus u defence of “set off” arising from u cluim aguinst Hoi Sinyg for upproximately
HK$308,207,000. As ut 31st March, 2003, the Compuny is u principul unsecured creditor of Hoi Sing und the
liyuidators of Hoi Sing huve udmitted u substuntiul portion of the Compuny’s cluim. The bulunce is beiny
adjudicuted by the liyuidutors of Hoi Siny.

The directors of the Compuny huve tuken legyul audvice und consider that the Compuny’s defence is valid
and thut ho obligution exists for the Company.

44. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) The Group as a lessee:

At the bualunce sheet dute, the Group had commitments for future minimum leuse payments under
non-cuncelluble operuting leuses in respect of rented premises, which fall due us follows:

THE GROUP
2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS 000
Within one yeur 1,201 172
In the second to fifth yeur inclusive 2,392 28
After five yeurs 1,026 -
4,619 200

Leuses ure heyotiuted, und monthly rentals ure fixed, for un uveruye term of two yeurs.

e ITC Corporation Limited - @



2003 | ANNUAL REPORT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003

44. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b) The Group as a lessor:

At the balunce sheet dute, the Group hud contructed with tenants for future minimum leuse puyments
which fall due s follows:

THE GROUP
2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS 000
Within one yeur 26,571 269
In the second to fifth yeur inclusive 10,665 361
37,236 630

The properties held huve committed tenunts for the next two yeurs.
The Compuny did not huve uny significunt operuting leuse urrangements us at the bulance sheet dute.

45. COMMITMENTS

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2003 2002 2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS 000 HK$°000 HKS 000
Cupitul expenditure contracted for but
not provided in the finunciul stutements
in respect of:

— subscription of hew shares of Star Eust 20,000 - 20,000 -
— ucyuisition of un ussociute 36,660 - - -
56,660 - 20,000 -

46. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31st Murch, 2003, certuin of the Group’s properties and debtors with un aygreyute vulue of
approximutely HK$911,086,000 (2002: HK$17,618,000) und its benefits under certuin construction contructs
and the interests in certuin issued shures of subsidiuries of the Compuny huve been pledyged to bunks und
finunciul institutions to secure yenerul credit fucilities graunted to the Group. Fucilities umounting to
upproximutely HK$796,354,000 (2002: HK$9,109,000) were utilised us ut 31st Murch, 2003,

47. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On 8th July, 2003, Paul Y. - ITC, Hunny, Chinu Strateyic und the Compuny jointly announced that Culisun
Developments Limited and Well Orient Limited (the “Offerors”), euch being wholly-owned subsidiury of Paul
Y. - ITC und Hunny, respectively, through Kingsway SW Securities Limited, will muke voluntary conditionul
cush offers ut the price of HKS0.10 for euch shure und HKS$0.001 for euch wurrant of Chinu Strateyic
respectively, other than those ownhed by the Offerors und purties ucting in concert with them, und to cuncel
dll outstunding shure options of Chinu Strateyic at HK$0.001 euch. Puul Y. - ITC, Hunny, Chihu Struteyic und
the Compuny further jointly unnounced on 21st July, 2003 that ufter the purchuse at the open muarket on 9th
July, 2003, the Offerors und their concert purties ure interested in 291,675,000 shures of Chinu Strateyic,
representing upproximately 35.16% of the issued shure cupitul of Chinu Strategic, thus frigyering a munduatory
offer during the offer period of u voluntury offer under Rule 26 of the Honhyg Kony Code on Tukeovers und
Mergers. The Offerors have notified China Strategic thut, to muke the offer price more uttractive to the
shureholders of Chinu Struteyic, the offer price per shure of Chinu Struteyic is to be increused from HKS0.10
to HKS$0.139, representing un increuse of 39%. The shures und wurraunts to be ucquired by Kingswuy SW
Securities Limited will be distributed to the Offerors in the sume proportion. As the Compuny hus 64.5%
interest in Paul Y. - ITC, the offer muy constitute u possible discloseuble transaction for the Compuny.
Followinyg the close of the offers, the Offerors intfend to tuke uppropriate steps to ensure that not less thun
25% of the shures of Chinu Strateyic will be held by the public. A circulur contuining, amony other things,
detuils of the offer will be desputched to shureholders of the Compuny us soon us practicuble.

e ITC Corporation Limited -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003

48. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the yeur or uat the bulunce sheet dute, the Group hud frunsuctions/bulunces with the followiny
reluted purties, detuils of which ure us follows:

Class of related party Nature of transactions/balances 2003 2002
HK$°000 HK$°000
Associutes of the Group Sules of building muteriuls (hotfe u) 511 1,404
Dividend income (including scrip dividend) 11,178 11,017

Rentals und related building munugement fee
chuaryged by the Group (hotes b und c¢) 2,395 -

Rentuls und reluted building munugement
fee churyed to the Group

(hotes b und ¢) 500 247
Subcontructing fees churged to the Group
(hote d) 393 -
Sules of motor car reyistration marks
to the Group (hote d) 790 -
Interest income received (hote e) 10,471 21,519
Interest puid (hote e) - 27
Amounts udvunced und fully repuid during
the yeur (hote ) - 181,700
Bulunce due by the Group (hote 30) 12,772 1m
Bulunce due to the Group
(hotes 19(f) and 25) 355,164 148,528
Jointly controlled entities Dividend income 5,000 -
of the Group Project munuygement fees churyed by
the Group (hote c) 3,000 -
Subcontructing fees churged to the Group
(hote d) 40,249 -
Service fees churged by the Group (hote ¢) 60 -
Bulunce due by the Group (hote 30) 69,343 -
Bulunce due to the Group (hotes 20 and 26) 5,207 -
Directors or compuny Interest puid by the Group (hote g) 900 173
controlled by director Interest puyuble on convertible notes issued
by the Group (hote h) 12,655 15,287
Bulunce due by the Group (hotes g and i) 66,500 -
Reluted compunies Rentul und reluted building munuyement fee
chuaryged by the Group (hotes b und c¢) 1,592 -
Project munuyement fees churged by
the Group (hote c) 549 -
Interest income received (hote e) 6,044 658
Bulunce due by the Group (hote 30) 205 -
Bulunce due to the Group (hote 27) 299,848 45,746
e ITC Corporation Limited -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003

48. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

During the yeur, the Compuny issued un uyyreyute principul amount of HK$250,000,000 convertible notes to
Dr. Chun Kwok Keuny, Churles for redemption of the convertible notes issued by the Compuny in un agyreyute
principal amount of HK$250,000,000 held by Guluxyway Investments Limited ("Guluxywuy”), u compuny in
which Dr. Chan Kwok Keuny, Charles, hus u beneficiul interests, pursuunt to a conditional agreement entered
oh 16th September, 2002 (us umended by d supplemental agreement duted 4th October, 2002) by the
Compuny und Guluxyway,

Duriny the yeur ended 31st Murch, 2002, the Compuny issued 105,000,000 hew ordinury shares of HKS0.10
euch ut un issue price of HK$0.60 per shure to Guluxywuy. Detuils of the trunsuction ure set out in hote
36(b).

On 25th October, 2002, the Compuny unnounced thut Hollyfield will muke the Offers ut the price of HK$0.30
for euch share und HKS$0.01 for euch warrant in Paul Y. - ITC, other thun those shures and wuarrants presently
owhed by the Compuny or its wholly-owned subsidiuries. Dr. Chun Kwok Keuny, Churles, on the sume dute,
has undertuken to the Compuny that he will (i) reimburse dll expenses incurred by the Compuny in connection
with the Offers in the event that the preconditions to which they dre subject ure not fulfilled; (ii) provide the
Compuny with the finunce to enuble it to satisfy full acceptunce of the Offers; und (iii) muke the Offers in
the event the Compuny fuils fo obtuin the upproval from its independent shareholders to permit it to muke
the Offers, through Hollyfield. The Offers were upproved by independent shareholders at u speciul genherul
meeting of the Compuny on 6th December, 2002. Dr. Chun Kwok Keuny, Charles has ugreed to finunce the
Offers in full by grunting to the Compuny on 28th October, 2002, u term loun fucility of up to HK$180,000,000
onh un uhsecured busis und on normul commerciul terms of which HK$66,500,000 wus utilised us ut 31st
Murch, 2003.

As ut 31st March, 2003, u subsidiary of Puul VY. - ITC udvunced upproximutely HK$43,786,000 to Humker
Concrete Products Limited ("Humker”) which is 70% indirectly owned by Paul Y. - ITC for finuncing its operutions.
Such udvunce wus the only finunciul ussistunce ygiven by Humker’s shareholders to Hamker, und is unsecured,
hus no fixed terms of repuyment und beurs inferest at commerciul rate.,

Notes:

() The fransactions were curried out by reference to the prevuiling market price for compuruble transuctions.
(b) Rentuls were churged ut the pre-ugreed fixed monthly umounts.

() Building maunuyement fee, service fee und project manuyement fee were churged ut the pre-ugreed rutes.

[Ce))] Subconfructing fees und sules of motor cuar reyistration murks were charged ut murket price or, where no murket
price wus avdiluble, ut terms determined und uyreed by both purties.

(e) Interest wus churged ut commercial rutes.
) Interest wus churged ut the Best Lendiny Rute less 2.5%.
(€®)} Interest wus churged ut the Best Lending Rute (2002: 1% over the Best Lending Rute).
h) Interest wus churgyed ut the Best Lendiny Rute.
0] The uamount wus unsecured und due ufter one yeur.
e ITC Corporation Limited -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

() Detuils of the Compuny’s principul subsidiaries us ut 31st March, 2003 are us follows:

Percentage of
issued share capital/

Issued and registered capital
Place of fully paid held by the  attributable
incorporation/ share capital/  Company*/ to the
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital subsidiaries Group Principal activities
% %
Burcon Group Limited Cunudu CAD1,000 100 100 Investment und
cluss A property holding
common shure
Culisun Developments British Virgin USs1 100 64.5 Investment holdiny
Limited Islands ordinury share
Corless Limited British Virgin US$2 100 64.5 Investment holding
Islands ordindry shares
Cycle Compuny Limited Honyg Kohy HK$2 100 64.5 Property investment
ordinury shures und holding
HK$2 - -
non-voting
deferred shares
(note (i) below)
DH Holdinys Limited British Virgin Uss1 100 64.5 Investment holding
Islands ordinury share
Dreyer und Compuny Honhy Kohy HK$6,424,000 99 99 Truding of buildinyg
Limited ordinury shures muteriuls und
machinery
Full Winners Limited Honhyg Kohy HK$2 100 64.5 Property sule und
ordinury shares holdinyg
Greut Infelligence Limited British Virgin USS1 100* 100 Investment holding
Islands ordinury share
Greut Infelligence Limited Honhy Kony HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
ordinury shares
Gunnell Properties British Virgin USS1 100 64.5 Property investment
Limited Islands ordinury shure und holdiny
Hamker Concrete Products  Honhyg Kony HK$5,000,000 70 45.1 Manufacturing aund
Limited ("Humker") ordinury shures fruding of concrete
products
[TC Development British Virgin US$15,000 100* 100 Investment holdiny
Co. Limited Islunds ordinary shures

e ITC Corporation Limited -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003

49.

Name of subsidiary
ITC Investment Group
Limited

ITC Investment Holdinygs
Limited

[TC Munuyement Group
Limited

[TC Munugement Limited

Lundwin Properties
Limited

Lurge Scule Investments
Limited

Nation Cheer Investment
Limited

Paul Y. - CREC
Engineering Co., Limited

Paul'Y. - CREC
Joint Venture

Paul Y, - ITC (E & M)
Contractors Limited

Paul Y. - ITC Construction
Group Limited

Issued and

Place of fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/
registration registered capital
British Virgin Us$1
Islands ordinury share
British Virgin Us$1
Islands ordinury share
British Virgin Uss2
Islands ordinury shares
Hony Kony HK$2
ordinury shures

Hony Kony HK$2
ordinury shares

British Virgin Us$1
Islands ordinury share
Hony Kony HK$1,200,000
ordinury shures

Hony Kony HK$10
ordinury shures

Hony Kony -
(note (i) below)

Hony Kony HK$20,000,000
ordinury shures

Hony Kony HK$2

ordinury shures

HK$1,000,000
non-voting
deferred shares
(note (ii)) below)

Percentage of
issued share capital/
registered capital

held by the  attributable
Company*/ to the
subsidiaries Group
% %
100* 100
100* 100
100* 100
100 100
100 100
100* 100
100 64.5
70 45.1
70 45.1
99.9998 64.5
100 64.5

e ITC Corporation Limited -

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(contihued)

Principal activities

Investment holdiny

Investment holdiny

Investment holdiny

Provision of
munugement und
udministrutive
services

Property holding
in PRC

Investment holdiny

Securities investment
and trading

Civil engineering

Civil engineeriny

Provision of
electricul,
mechunicul und
building services

Investment holdiny



ANNUAL REPORT | 2003

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(contihued)

Percentage of
issued share capital/

Issued and registered capital
Place of fully paid held by the  attributable
incorporation/ share capital/  Company*/ to the
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital subsidiaries Group Principal activities
% %
Paul Y. - ITC Construction Bermudu HK$106,301,604 64.5 64.5 Investment holdinyg in
Holdings Limited ordinury shures compunies enyuyed
in construction,
enyineering und
infrastructure
munuyement
services, property
development und
investment
Paul Y. - ITC Construction Honhyg Kony HK$102,000,000 100 64.5 Building construction
Limited ordinury shares
Paul Y. - ITC Construction Honhyg Kohy HK$42,000,000 100 64.5 Building construction
& Engineering Co. Limited ordinury shures und speciulist works
Paul'y. - ITC Generdl Hony Kony HK$36,000,000 100 64.5 Civil engineeriny
Contractors Limited ordinury shures und building
construction
Paul Y. - ITC Interior Honhyg Kohy HK$2 100 64.5 Interior decorution
Contractors Limited ordinury shures works
Paul V. - ITC Investments British Virgin USS1 100 64.5 Investment holdinyg
Group Limited Islands ordinury shure
Paul'y. - ITC Munugement Honyg Kohy HK$2 100 64.5 Muanugement services
Limited ordinury shures
Paul'y. - ITC Plunt Hire Honhy Kohy HK$2 100 64.5 Hire of motor
Limited ordinury shures vehicles und plunt
and machinery
Paul Y. Building Honhy Kony HK$2 100 64.5 Property
Munuyement Limited ordinury shures munugement
services
Paul Y. Construction Honyg Kohy HK$2 100 64.5 Civil engineeriny,

Compuny, Limited

ordinury shures

HK$50,000,000
non-voting
preferred shares
(note (iv) below)

e ITC Corporation Limited -

buildiny
construction
and investment
holdiny
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(contihued)

Percentage of
issued share capital/

Issued and registered capital
Place of fully paid held by the  attributable
incorporation/ share capital/  Company*/ to the
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital subsidiaries Group Principal activities
% %
Paul Y. Foundution British Virgin USS1 100 64.5 Investment holding
Holdinys Limited Islands ordinury shure
Paul' Y. Foundution Limited Hony Kony HK$10,000,000 100 64.5 Civil engineering und
ordinury shures foundution works
Paul Y. Properties British Virgin USS1 100 64.5 Investment holdiny
Group Limited Islands ordinury shure
Paul'Y. Tunnel Honhy Kony HK$2 100 64.5 Civil engineeriny
Engineering Co. Limited ordinury shures
Skylink Enterprises Honyg Kohy HK$10 100 64.5 Holdiny of lund use
Limited ordinury shares right
Tui Shan Paul Y, PRC US$5,005,340 100 64.5 Civil engineeriny
Construction Co., Ltd. reyistered capital und building
(hote (v) below) construction
Technico Investments Hony Kony HK$2 100 64.5 Holding of lund use
Limited ordinury shares right
Unicon Concrete Products Hony Kony HK$12,000,002 100 64.5 Munufacturing und
(HK) Limited ordinury shures fruding of concrete
products
Unicon Industrial Limited Hohy Konhy HK$2 100 64.5 Property holding
ordinury shares
Unistress Concrete Hony Kony HK$200 100 64.5 Manufacturing und
Products (H.K.) Limited ordinury shures frading of
concrete products
HK$1,000,000 100 64.5
non-voting
deferred shares
(note (ii)) below)
Unistress Group Limited British Virgin US$1 100 64.5 Investment holdiny
Islands ordinury share

e ITC Corporation Limited -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(contihued)

Notes:

O] The holders of the non-voting deferred shares aure not entitled to vote, ure hot entitled to uny dividends
unless the net profits of the compuny uvdiluble for dividend exceed HK$100,000,000,000,000 in which cuse
they should be entitled tfo u fixed non-cumulative dividend ut the rute of 5% per unnum for uny finuncial
yeur und dre, on winding up, only enfitled out of the surplus ussets of the compuny to u return of the cupital
after u totul sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000 hus been distributed to the holders of the ordinury shares of the
compuny.

(i) No cupitul has been contributed by the joint venture parthers of the joint venture.

(iii) The holders of the non-voting deferred shares are not entitled to vote, ure not entitled to uny dividends for
any finunciul yeur und ure, on winding up or otherwise, only entitled out of the surplus ussets of the
compuny to u return of the cupitul ufter u totul sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000 hus been distributed to the
holders of the ordinary shures of the compuny.

(iv) The holders of the non-voting preferred shares ure hot entitled to vote, ure not entitled to uny dividends
unless the net profits of the compuny uvuiluble for dividend exceed HKS$100,000,000,000 in which cuse they
should be entitled to u fixed hon-cumulutive dividend ut the raute of 5% per unnum for uny finunciual yeur
and ure, oh winding up, only entitled out of the surplus ussets of the compuny to u returh of the cupitul
after u totul sum of HK$10,000,000,000 hus been distributed to the holders of the ordinary shures of the
compuny.

) The compuny is u sino-foreign equity joint venture compuny.

None of the subsidiuries had uny loun cupitul subsisting ut the end of the yeur or ut uny time duriny
the yeur,

All of the ubove subsidiuries operute in Hony Kony except Humker und Tui Shun Paul Y. Construction
Co., Ltd. which operate in PRC und Burcon Group Limited which operates in Cunudua.

All of the ubove subsidiaries ure limited compunies except Paul Y. - CREC Joint Venture, which is un
uhincorporuted business.

(b) Detuils of the Group’s principul ussociutes us at 31st Murch, 2003 ure us follows:

Percentage of

Issued and issued share
fully paid  capital/registered
Place of share capital/ capital
incorporation/ registered attributable
Name of associate registration capital to the Group Principal activities
%
Burcon NutraScience Cunudu CAD11,615,541 26.0 Investment holding
Corporution (“Burcon”) common shures in compuny enguyged
in the development of
commerciul cunolu protein
Downer EDI Limited Austrdlia AS$484,870,365 23.6 Investment holding
("Downer”) ordinury shares
e ITC Corporation Limited - @
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(contihued)
Percentage of
Issued and issued share
fully paid  capital/registered
Place of share capital/ capital
incorporation/ registered attributable
Name of associate registration capital to the Group Principal activities
%
Huny Puk Enyineeriny Hohy Kony HK$100,000 16.4 Elevutors und esculutors
Limited ordinury shares muintenunce
Haunny Holdings Limited Bermudu HK$1,603,014 28.3 Investment holding in
ordinuary shares compunies enguyed in the
munufacturing, distribution
und murketing of dutu storuge
mediu, the distribution of
reluted products, securities
investments und strategic
investments in information
technoloyy reluted businesses
und other businesses
Paul Y. - CREC Construction  Hony Kony HK$100 32.2 Civil engineeriny
Co., Limited ordinary shares
Paul Y. - SELI Joint Venture Hony Kony - 32.2 Civil engineeriny
(hote (i) below)
Star Eust Holdinys Limited Bermudu HK$12,256,876 25.9 Investment holding in
ordinary shares compunies enguged in
entertuinment-reluted
business including production
of movies, television drumu
series, documentury und
infotuinment progrummes, the
franchising und operution of
theme restaurants under the
brand numes of “Plunet
Hollywood” und “Stur Eust”
in Asiu Pucific, strateygic
investment in M Chunnel,
talent munagement, music
production, event production
und murketing und property
investment
ThyssenKrupp Elevutor Honhy Kohy HK$116,800,000 14.3 Elevutors und esculutors
(HK) Limited ordinury shures installution und
(formerly Bonyeur Elevutor muintenunce
(HK) Limited)
Zhujiuny Kwun On Concrete PRC RMB6,320,000 32.2 Manufucturing und
Products Co., Ltd. reyistered cupitdl frading of concrete
("Zhujiuny Kwun On") (hote (i) below) products

@ e ITC Corporation Limited -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(contihued)

Notes:
O] No cupitul hus been contributed by the joint venture partners of this joint venture.
(i) The compuny is u sino-foreign equity joint venture compuny.

All of the ubove ussociutes operute in Hony Kony with the exception of Burcon, Downer und Zhujiuny
Kwan On, which operates in Cunadu, Australia and PRC respectively.

All of the ubove ussociutes ure limited compunies except Puul Y. - SELI Joint Venture, which is un
uhincorporuted business.

All of the ubove ussociutes ure held by the Compuny indirectly.

The ubove tubles list the subsidiaries und ussociutes of the Compuny which, in the opinion of the
directors, principully uffected the results for the yeur or formed d substantiul portion of the het ussets
of the Group. To ygive detuils of other subsidiaries und ussociutes would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulurs of excessive length.

©) Detuils of the Group’s jointly controlled entities us ut 31st March, 2003 are us follows:

Percentage of
issued share

Issued and capital
Name of jointly Place of fully paid attributable
controlled entity incorporation share capital to the Group Principal activities
%
DL & PY JV Limited Hony Kony HK$2 32.2 Civil engineering

ordinury shares

Paul VY. - Pentu-Oceun Hong Kony - 32.2 Civil engineering
Joint Venture (hote below)

Note: No cupitul hus been contributed by the joint venture partners, ulthough the Group hus contributed workiny
cupitul umounting fo HK$5,000,000 to this joint venture.

All of the ubove entities are held indirectly by the Compuny and operute in Hony Kong.

50. EXTRACTS OF THE CONSOLIDATED RESULTS AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF ASSOCIATES

Hanny
Results for the years ended 31st March, 2003 and 2002

2003 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover 4,162,804 4,373,909

Loss before tuxution (570,474) (75,044

Loss for the yeur (648,472 (102,455)
e ITC Corporation Limited -
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50. EXTRACTS OF THE CONSOLIDATED RESULTS AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF ASSOCIATES

(contihued)
Hanny
Financial position as at 31st March, 2003 and 2002

2003 2002
HK$’000 HKS 000
Non-current ussets 1,593,147 1,671,193
Current ussets 1,663,268 2,233,870
Current liubilities (1,185,858) (1,432,304)
Minority interests (170,500 (214,611)
Non-current Liabilities (176,958) (10,980)
Star East
Results for the years ended 31st March, 2003 and 2002
2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS 000
Turnover 139,913 179,797
Loss before taxution (129,154) (479,736)
Net loss for the year (130,409 (461,690)
Financial position as at 31st March, 2003 and 2002
2003 2002
HK$°000 HKS 000
Non-current ussets 234,602 418,227
Current ussets 142,489 178,011
Current liubilities (199,179 (327,749
Minority interests (176) (277)
Non-current liabilities (119,672 (126,755)
Downer
Financidl position us ut 31st December, 2002
HK$°000
Non-current ussets 4,141,241
Current ussets 4,249,336
Current liabilities (2,392,544)
Non-current liabilities (2,506,737)

Preference shure caupital (285,987)

Full detdils of the results und finunciul position of Hanny und Star Eust cun be found in their unhudl reports
dated 21st July, 2003 und 17th July, 2003, respectively.

The finunciul position of Dowher have been extracted from the published financial informution us at 31st
December, 2002.

e ITC Corporation Limited -



